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refunds to customers of other long-distance carriers who were billed for the
calls.
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New York, N.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission , having reason to believe that
Beylen Telecom , Ltd. and NiteLine Media , Inc. , corporations , and
Ron Tan , individually and as an offcer ofNiteLine Media, Inc. ("the
respondents ), have violated the provisions of the Federal Trade

Commission Act, and it appearing to the Commission that this
proceeding is in the public interest , alleges:

1. Beylen Telecom , Ltd.

, ("

BTL") is a corporation organized
existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
Cayman Islands with its principal offce or place of business at
Genesis Building, PS Box 2097 , Grand Cayman , Cayman Islands
British West Indies.

2. NiteLine Media, Inc. ("NiteLine ) is a corporation doing
business under and by virtue of the Jaws of the State of New York
with its principal office or place of business at 7302 19th Avenue
Brooklyn, New York.
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3. Ron Tan aJa Roeun Tan ("Tan ) is an offcer and shareholder
of corporate respondent NiteLine Media, Inc. Individually or in
concert with others, he has formulated, directed, controlled or

paricipated in the acts or practices of the corporation, including the
acts or practices alleged in this complaint. His principal office or
place of business is the same as that ofNiteLine Media, Inc.

4. At all times relevant to this complaint, the respondents have
maintained a substantial course of trade, advertising, offering for sale
and selling computer-stored images via both the Internet and
international and interstate telephone lines , in or affecting commerce
as "commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 D. C. 44.

COURSE OF BUSINESS

5. From at least December 1996 through January 1997, the

respondents Tan and NiteLine posted messages to newsgroups and
operated and promoted one or more World Wide Web sites
including the web sites located at ..ww. erotic2000.com .. and
www. erotica2000. com. .. Through news group messages and these

web sites , respondents Tan and NiteLine represenied, expressly or by
implication, that consumers could view "adult" images for tree at
sites on the Internet. A newsgroup is a collection of electronic
messages , purortedly about a given topic , that consumers may read
on the Internet. The World Wide Web or Web is a system used on the
Internet for cross-referencing and retrieving information. A web site
is a set of electronic documents, usually a home page and subordinate
pages , readily viewable on computer by anyone with access to the
Web , standard softare, and knowledge of the web site s location or
address.

6. At one or more of the web sites operated by respondents Tan
and NiteLine and in one or more of their news group messages
respondents Tan and NiteLine stated that they offered "FREE XXX
Images " for viewing at "FREE ADULT SITES. " In addition, at one
or more of their web sites, the respondents Tan and NiteLine stated
that the international sites they offered entailed:

NO MEMBERSHIP FEES!
NO CREDIT CARDS NEEDED'

NO 900# CHARGES!

7. Web sites operated by respondents Tan and NiteLine instrcted
consumers that to view the "adult" images offered, the consumer had
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to first "download a special image viewer. " This " image viewer" was
a software program, which was identified as "david. exe " or

david7. exe " or other similar names.
8. Contrary to the clear implication of the tenn "image viewer

that respondents Tan and NiteLine used on their web sites to describe
this softare program, the "david.exe" (or similarly named softare)
was not merely a means for reading computer data and converting
such data into visual images. Instead , this softare , if downloaded
installed, and activated, would, without any explanations or adequate
disclosures: (a) automatically tenninate the consumer s computer
modem connection to the consumer s local Internet service provider
while maintaining the appearance that the computer modem remained
connected to such local Internet service provider; (b) automatically
direct the consumer s computer modem to dial an international
telephone number to re-connect to the Internet; (c) maintain the
international long distance telephone connection thus established
unless and until the consumer turned off the power switch to his
computer or modem , or took other unusual action to tenninate the
telephone connection; and (d) caused the consumer to incur
international long distance telephone charges on his telephone bill at
rates in excess of $2.00 per minute for as long as the international
long distance telephone connection was maintained. One of the
techniques that this software employed to maintain the appearance
that the computer modem remained connected to the consumer s local
Internet service provider was to automatically turn off the speaker on
the consumer s modem before dialing, thus preventing the consumer
from hearing the sound of the international number being
automatically dialed.

9. Prior to about Januar 23 1997 , respondents Tan and NiteLine
at one or more of their web sites and in newsgroup messages , failed
to disclose any of the events , described above in paragraph eight, that
automatically followed if one downloaded , installed and activated the
purported "viewer" softare.

10. Respondents Tan and NiteLine changed one or more of their
web sites on or about Januar 23 1997. Nevertheless , after that date
their web sites and news group messages continued to fail to disclose
that once a consumer downloaded, installed and activated the

viewer" software , it caused consumers to incur international long
distance telephone charges at rates in excess of $2. 00 per minute. In
addition, web sites and news group messages posted by respondents
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Tan and NiteLine continued to fail to disclose that the consumer
computer modem would maintain the international long distance
telephone connection unless and until the consumer turned off the
power switch to his computer or modem or took other unusual action
to terminate the telephone connection.

II. After about January 10 , 1997 , one or more of respondents
web sites stated if consumers downloaded their "viewer" softare, the
consumers' computer modems would be connected to a site in
Moldova, a former constituent state of the now-defuct Soviet Union.
However, the computer modems of consumers who downloaded the
softare were not connected to a site located in Moldova, but rather
were connected to a site located in Canada. Thus , even though the
automatic telephone call generated by the "viewer" softare went to
Canada, the consumer was charged at the comparatively much higher
per-minute rates for a call to Moldova.

12. Once a consumer had downloaded , installed and activated the
purported "viewer" software offered by respondents Tan and
NiteLine, the consumer continued to incur international long distance
telephone charges for as long as his computer modem was connected
to the international long distance number and even after the consumer
had exited respondents Tan and NiteLine s " adult" sites.

13. Respondents Tan and NiteLine s promises of "free" Internet
viewing of computer- stored images lured consumers from the U.
and foreign countries into incurring hundreds of thousands of dollars
in international long distance telephone charges.

14. Respondent BTL is a service bureau that provides
telecommunications and other services to entities that promote
international pay-per-call programs. In that capacity, respondent BTL
assigned Moldovan telephone numbers to respondent NiteLine , as

well as to Internet Girls , Inc. n a defendant in the federal court action
FTC v. Audiotex Connection, Inc. CV-97 0726 (DRH) (E.
filed Feb. 13 , 1997). Directly or indirectly, respondent BTL also
provided NiteLine and Internet Girls with the following services: (a)
daily telephone traffc and billing reports; (b) the "david. exe" (or
similarly named software) program and technical support for this
viewer" software program described above; (c) text or graphics to

use in soliciting consumers on the Internet, including information that
Tan or NiteLine incorporated into news group messages or that Tan
NiteLine, or Audiotex defendants William Gannon or Internet
Girls incorporated into the web sites ..ww.erotic2000.com
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ww.erotica2000.com

" "

ww. sexygirls. com

" "

ww. I adult.com
or ..ww.beavisbutthead.com ; and (d) a tennination point for

audiotext calls , namely a site in Canada containing computer images
for viewing.

15. A foreign telephone carer contracted to pay respondent BTL
a portion of the revenues received ITom consumers for calls placed to
specific international telephone numbers. Respondent BTL , in turn
contracted to pay respondent NiteLine a per-minute rate for calls they
generated to those specific international telephone numbers.
(Respondent BTL contracted to pay defendant Internet Girls on a
similar basis). Thus , respondents BTL , Tan , and NiteLine were to
receive a portion of the amount of international telephone charges
incuITed by consumers.

VIEWING COST

16. In numerous instances , in the course of advertising, offering,
offering for sale, or selling certain computer-stored images located at
Internet sites, respondents Tan and NiteLine represented to
consumers , expressly or by implication , that consumers could view
the images without cost by downloading, installing and activating
purported "viewer" softare.

17. In truth and in fact, once a consumer downloaded , installed
and activated the purported "viewer" software to view computer-
stored images located at Internet sites , the consumer incuITed costs
for an international long distance telephone call.

18. Therefore, the representations of respondents Tan and

NiteLine , as set forth in paragraph sixteen , above , were false and
deceptive , in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act , 15 U. c. 45.

SOFTWARE FOR DOWNLOADING

19. In numerous instances, in the course of advertising, offering,
offering for sale, or selling certain computer-stored images located at
Internet sites, respondents Tan and NiteLine represented to
consumers , expressly or by implication , that consumers could view
the images by downloading, installing and activating purported
viewer" softare.

20. In numerous instances , respondents Tan and NiteLine failed
to disclose or disclose adequately to consumers the material facts that
by downloading, installing, and activating the purported "viewer
software , the following would result:



BEYLEN TELECOM , LTD. , ET AL. 281

276 Complaint

a. The consumer s computer would terminate its modem
connection to the consumer s usual local Internet service provider;

b. The consumer s modem would dial an international long
distance telephone number and establish a long-distance telephone

connection with an Internet service provider at some remote location
outside the United States;

c. The consumer would likely incur international long distance
telephone charges at rates in excess of $2.00 per minute for as long
as the long-distance telephone connection with the remote Internet
service provider was maintained; and

d. The consumer s computer modem would not terminate the
international long distance telephone connection to the remote
Internet service provider unless and until the consumer turned off the
power switch to his computer or modem or took other unusual action
to terminate the telephone connection.

21. In view of representations by respondents Tan and NiteLine
that consumers could view certain images located at Internet sites by
downloading, installing and activating purported "viewer" softare
as set forth in paragraph nineteen, above , respondents Tan and
NiteLine s failure to disclose or disclose adequately the material

information set forth in paragraph twenty, above , was deceptive , in

violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act , 15 U. c. 45.

22. By providing respondent NiteLine (and defendant Internet
Girls) with telephone numbers, and by directly or indirectly providing
the "viewer" software , text or graphics , or other goods or services
described in paragraphs fourteen and fifteen, above , for the purpose
of inducing consumers to call international telephone numbers
respondent BTL provided the means and instrumentalities to others
and thereby acted in concert with others or knowingly and

substantially assisted others , to engage in the deceptive acts and
practices alleged in paragraphs sixteen through twenty-one, above, in

violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U. c. 45.

TELEPHONE BILLING

23. In numerous instances , in the course of advertising, offering,
offering for sale , or selling certain computer-stored images located at
Internet sites , respondents directly or through an intermediar caused
charges for long distance calls to Moldova to appear on the telephone
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billing statements of consumers who downloaded , installed and
activated respondents ' purported "viewer" software.

24. In truth and in fact, the call that a consumer s computer
modem dialed when the consumer downloaded, installed and
activated respondents ' purported "viewer" software did not go to
Moldova, which has high per-minute long distance telephone rates for
calls ITom the United States , but instead went to Canada, which has
comparatively much lower long distance rates for calls ITom the
United States.

25. Therefore, respondents ' practice of causing charges for long
distance calls to Moldova to appear on the telephone billing
statements of consumers who had downloaded, installed and activated
respondents ' purported "viewer" software, as set forth in paragraph
twenty-three, above , was deceptive , in violation of Section 5 of the
FTC Act, 15 U.S. c. 45.

26. The acts and practices of respondents as alleged in this
complaint constitute unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or
affecting commerce in violation of Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade
Commission Act.

Commissioner
participating.

Thompson and Commissioner Swindle not

DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation
of certain acts and practices of the respondents named in the caption
hereof, and the respondents having been furnished thereafter with a
copy of a draft complaint which the Bureau of Consumer Protection
proposed to present to the Commission for its consideration and
which, if issued by the Commission , would charge respondents with
violation of the Federal Trade Commission Act; and

The respondents , their attorney, and counsel for the Commission
having thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order
an admission by the respondents for purposes of the order of all the
jurisdictional facts set forth in the aforesaid draft complaint, a
statement that the signing of said agreement is for settlement
purposes only and does not constitute an admission by respondents
that the law has been violated as alleged in such complaint, or that the
facts as alleged in such complaint, other than jurisdictional facts , are
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true, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission s Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having detennined that it had reason to believe that the respondents
have violated the said Act , and that a complaint should issue stating
its charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the

executed consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public
record for a period of sixty (60) days , now in further confonnity with
the procedure prescribed in Section 2.34 of its Rules , the Commission
hereby issues its complaint , makes the fonowing jurisdictional
findings and enters the fonowing order:

la. Respondent Beylen Telecom, Ltd. , is a corporation organized
existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
Cayman Islands with its principal offce or place of business at

Genesis Building, PS Box 2097 , Grand Cayman , Cayman Islands
British West Indies.

lb. Respondent NiteLine Media, Inc. is a New York corporation
with its principal offce or place of business at 7302 19th Avenue
Brooklyn, New York.

1 c. Respondent Ron Tan is an individual residing within the State
of New York and is an offcer and shareholder of NiteLine Media
Inc. Individuany or in concert with others he fonnulates , direct, or

controls the policies, acts , or practices of NiteLine Media. His
principal offce or place of business is the same as that of NiteLine
Media, Inc.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and ofthe respondents , and the proceeding
is in the public interest.

ORDER

DEFINITONS

For purposes of this order, the fonowing definitions shan apply:

1. Bey/en means Beylen Telecom, Ltd. and its successors

assigns , shareholders , offcers , agents , servants , employees , and those

persons in active concert or participation with them who receive
actual notice of this order by personal service or otherwise, whether
acting through any corporation , subsidiary, division, or other device.
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2. "NiteLine means NiteLine Media, Inc. and its successors
assigns, shareholders , officers , agents , servants , employees , and those
persons in active concert or participation with them who receive
actual notice of this order by personal service or otherwise , whether
acting through any corporation, subsidiar, division, or other device.

3. "Ron Tan means Ron Tan a!a Roeun Tan, individually, and
in his capacity as an offcer and shareholder of NiteLine Media, Inc.
and his successors , assigns , officers, agents, servants , employees , and
those persons in active concert or paricipation with them who receive
actual notice of this order by personal service or otherwise, whether
acting through any corporation , subsidiar, division, or other device.

4. Unless otherwise specified respondents shall mean Beylen
and NiteLine, corporations , their successors and their offcers; Ron
Tan, individually and as an offcer of NiteLine; and each of the
above s agents , representatives and employees. Unless otherwise
specified

, "

respondent" shall mean NiteLine , Ron Tan or Beylen.
5. "Commerce shall mean "commerce" as defined in Section 4

ofthe Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U. c. 44.

6. "Clearly and conspicuously shall mean as follows:
In an advertisement communicated through an electronic medium
(such as television , video , radio , and interactive media such as the
Internet and online services), the disclosure shall be presented
simultaneously in both the audio and video portions of the
advertisement. Provided, however, that in any advertisement
presented solely through video or audio means , the disclosure may be
made through the same means in which the ad is presented. The audio
disclosure shall be delivered in a volume and cadence suffcient for
an ordinary consumer to hear and comprehend it. The video
disclosure shall be of a size and shade, and shall appear on the screen
for a duration, suffcient for an ordinar consumer to read and
comprehend it. In addition to the foregoing, in interactive media the
disclosure shall also be unavoidable and shall be presented prior to
the consumer incurng any financial obligation. The disclosure shall
be in understandable language and syntax. Nothing contrary to
inconsistent with, or in mitigation of the disclosure shall be used in
any advertisement.

7. "Document is synonymous in meaning and equal in scope to
the usage of the term in Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 34(a), and
includes writings , drawings , graphs , charts, photographs , audio and
video recordings , computer records , and other data compilations fTom
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which information can be obtained. A draft or non-identical copy is
a separate document within the meaning of the term.

8. David. exe " means a software program that, as alleged in the
Commission s draft complaint , a respondent has promoted, offered
distrbuted , or provided on web sites as a "viewer " which consumers
may download, install, and execute, and which dials an international
long-distance telephone number for which a fee is charged.

9. "Eligible consumer means a telephone subscriber that was
billed for international long distance calls to Moldova ITom

December, 1996 through Februar, 1997 to one of the telephone
numbers listed in Schedule A , annexed hereto.

10. "Relevant charges " means the dollar amount biled by AT&T
MCI, Sprint or another long distance carrer to an eligible consumer
for international long distance calls to Moldova from December 1996
through February 1997 , to one of the telephone numbers listed in
Schedule A, annexed hereto.

II is therefore ordered That, in connection with using the Internet
to place international long distance telephone calls , each respondent
shall not violate Section 5(a) ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S. c. 45(a) by:

A. Representing, either directly or by implication, that consumers

may download, install , activate or use a computer software program
to view computer-stored images without cost, unless there are no
costs to consumers arsing ITom such activity.

B. Representing, either directly or by implication, that a consumer
may view computer-stored images by downloading, installing and
activating a softare program known as "David. exe" or any other
substantially similar software , unless such respondent clearly and
conspicuously discloses , in close proximity to the representation, any
material facts concernng costs and consequences to a consumer that
result ITom downloading, installing, and activating such softare
including, but not limited to , the following:

I. That the consumer s computer wil terminate its modem
connection to the consumer s usual Internet service provider;

2. That the consumer s modem will dial an international
long-distance telephone number and establish a long-distance
telephone connection with some remote location outside the United
States;
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3. (a) A statement that " International long distance telephone
charges to (insert country of call termination J apply ; and

(b) Either:

(i) A statement that "This call may cost you as much as (insert the
maximum estimate of possible per-minute tariffed charge available
through one of the three largest U. S. long-distance carers (e. MCI
Sprint or AT&T; hereafter "a major U.S. carrer )J per minute ; or

(ii) A stated range of possible costs per-minute for the call , where

the maximum possible per-minute charge available through a major
U.S. carer is disclosed at least as prominently as any lower estimate
of possible charges, and the lower estimate is based on a
non-promotional standard tariffed charge available through a major
carrer, and there is a clear and conspicuous disclosure of the
following statement: "To determine your exact per-minute charges
contact your long distance carrer. ; and

4. That , once connected , the consumer s computer modem will not
terminate the international long-distance telephone connection to the
remote service provider unless and until: (a) the consumer terminates
the connection by using a " disconnect" feature that is displayed on the
screen throughout the connection; OR (b) the call is terminated
automatically after some specific , stated period of time (e.g after 5

minutes); OR (c) the consumer turns off the power switch to his
computer or modem , or takes other drastic and unusual action to
terminate the telephone connection, if neither (a) nor (b) above are
applicable.

II.

It is further ordered That:

A Each respondent shall not violate Section 5(a) of the FTC Act
15 U. c. 45(a) by directly causing international long-distance
charges to appear on the telephone billing statement of any consumer
when such call does not , in fact, go to the international destination for
which charges are assessed; and

B. Each respondent, when contracting with any entity for
international call charges to appear on any consumer s telephone bill
shall include wrtten terms in such contract requiring calls to go to the
destination for which charges are assessed on a consumer s telephone
bill. If, at the time of the entry of this order, a respondent has an
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existing contract with another entity that arranges call charges to
appear on any conswner s telephone bill , the respondent may satisfy
the requirements of this Section by obtaining from that entity a letter
or other written assurance that calls go to the destination for which
charges are assessed on a consumer s telephone bill.

It is further ordered That:

A. Pursuant to the Consent Decree and Order proposed in FTC v.
Audiotex Connection, Inc. CV-97 0726 (DRH) (EDNY) (" the
Consent Decree ), and after the entry of such Consent Decree
eligible consumers charged by AT&T or MCI for telephone calls
involving David.exe shall , to the extent possible , receive a credit on
their monthly telephone bill equal to the amount of the relevant
charges. To the extent an eligible consumer has already been credited
such an amount in full , no additional credit shall be extended. To the
extent an eligible consumer has received a partial credit, only the
remaining balance of the original relevant charge shall be credited.
The process for issuing the credits to eligible consumers will be
administered by AT&T and MCI, respectively, and monitored and/or
audited by the FTC. The reasonable costs of the two carrers arising
from the issuance of credits for the relevant charges and from such
administration of credits shall be reimbursed by the escrow agent by
deducting and paying to AT&T and MCI , respectively, the amounts
stated below.

B. Pursuant to the Consent Decree and Order proposed in FTC v.
Audiotex Connection, Inc. CV-97 0726 (DRH) (EDNY), and after
the entr of such Consent Decree, a Redress Escrow Account shall be
established at a ban with a branch located in the State of New York
and Joel Dichter, Esq" shall be designated as the sole escrow agent
and signatory to this Redress Escrow Account. In addition to the
funds deposited by the defendants in FTC v. Audiotex Connection
Inc. the respondents shall deposit suffcient funds into the Redress
Escrow Account as are necessary to enable the cscrow agent to
distribute the funds , consisting of a total deposit of all sums provided
by Section nm(1) and (2), below, contemporaneously with a deposit
of the $60 000 provided by Section nm(3), in the following manner:

l.A T &T shall be distributed the sum of $660 000 toward the cost
of administering the credit to consumers provided by Section IIA
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above, and toward reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses
associated with calls to the Moldova telephone numbers;

2. MCI shall be distributed the sum of$99 302. 57 toward the cost
of administering the credit to consumers provided by Section IIA
above and toward reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses
associated with calls to the Moldova telephone numbers;

3. Forty Thousand Dollars ($40 000) shall be distributed to the
Federal Trade Commission and shall be used , where practicable , to
provide redress to eligible consumers charged by an international
long-distance carer other than AT&T or MCI (hereinafter referred
to as "Eligible Non-AT&T/MCI Consumers ). The Commission , in
its sole discretion, may use a designated agent to administer redress
for Eligible Non-AT&T/MCI Consumers. If the Commission , in its
sole discretion, detennines that redress to consumers is wholly or
partially impractical, any funds up to Forty Thousand Dollars
($40 000. 00) not so used shall be paid to the United States Treasury.
The respondents shall be notified as to how such funds are disbursed
but shall have no right to contest the manner of distribution. Eligible
Non-AT&T/MCI Consumers shall have 90 days from the Court'
entry of the Consent Decree to request a refund. If the Commission
or its designated agent detennine within 120 days from the entry of
the Consent Decree that the cost of issuing and administering refunds
to Eligible Non-AT&T/MCI Consumers exceeds Forty Thousand
Dollars ($40 000. 00), the Commission or its designated agent shall so
notify the escrow agent , and an additional sum of money not to
exceed Twenty Thousand Dollars (520 000. 00) shall be distrbuted by
the escrow agent to the Commission for redress to Eligible
Non-AT&T/MCI Consumers. To the extent that the escrow agent is
not notified in writing by the Commission within such 120 day period
that all or a portion of the additional Twenty Thousand Dollars
($20 000. 00) is required by the Commission for redress purposes , the

$20 000.00 or remaining portion thereof not required by the
Commission for redress puroses shall be released from the Redress
Escrow Account and distrbuted promptly by the escrow agent to any
contributing defendant in FTC v. Audiotex Conneclion, Inc. and/or
any contributing respondent.

C. If, during the 60-day comment period before the issuance of
this order, the respondents distributed funds to the Redress Escrow
Account in amounts suffcient to commence the redress program
under the Consent Decree in FTC v. Audiotex Connection, Inc. such
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payment fulfills the respondents ' redress obligations under Section
IIB above.

IV.

It is further ordered That for a period of three years after the date
of entry of this order, each respondent shall maintain, and make

available to the FTC upon reasonable notice , documents that, in
reasonable detail , accurately, fairly, and completely reflect such
respondent' activities related to using the Internet to place
international long distance telephone calls including:

A. 1. Representative wrtten and, if distributed in audio format
audiotaped copies of all solicitations, advertisements, or other
marketing materials actually used;

2. The number, trequency, and average duration of calls to any
international , tolled telephone numbers advertised or promoted
directly or indirectly by such respondent , as well as the payments
received and payments made for such calls;

3. The portion of the contract or the other written assurance

referenced in Section lIB of this order; and
B. Records that reflect, for every consumer complaint or refund

request received trom any consumer to whom such respondent has
sold, biled or sent any goods or services , or trom whom such
respondent accepted money for such goods or services, whether

received directly or indirectly or through any third party:

1. The consumer s name, address , telephone number and the
dollar amount paid by the consumer;

2. The wrtten complaint or refund request , if any, and the date
of the complaint or refund request;

3. The basis of the complaint and the nature and result of any
investigation conducted concerning the validity of the

complaint;
4. Each response from the respondent(s) and the date of the

response;
5. Any final resolution and the date of the resolution; and
6. In the event of a denial of a refund request, the reason for

such denial.
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It is further ordered That, to enable the Commission to monitor
compliance with the provisions of this order, for a period of three
years after the date of entry of this order:

A. Each corporate respondent shall notify the FTC in writing,
within thirty (30) days of: (I) any reorganization, name change
dissolution, change in majority ownership, or any corporate change
that may affect compliance obligations arising under this order; and
(2) any affliation with any new business entity (including but not
limited to , any partnership, limited partnership, joint venture, sole
proprietorship or corporation) in connection with using the Internet
to place international long distance telephone calls , such notification
to include: (a) the name of the business entity; (b) the address and
telephone number ofthe business entity; (c) the names of the business
entity s officers, directors , principals and managers; and (d) a
sumary description of the business entity s intended activities; and

B. Each individual respondent shall notify the FTC in writing,
within thirty (30) days of the discontinuance of his current business
affliation or employment with a corporate respondent, or of his
affliation or employment with any new business entity (including but
not limited to , any partnership, limited parership, joint venture, sole
proprietorship or corporation) in connection with using the Internet
to place international long distance telephone calls , in the latter case
such notification to include: (a) the name of the business entity; (b)
the address and telephone number of the business entity; (c) the
names of the business entity s officers, directors , principals and
managers; and (d) a summary description of the business entity
intended activities; and

C. Each respondent shall designate its counsel as authorized to
accept service of all documents related to this order.

VI.

It is further ordered That each respondent shal1 not provide or
distribute to any person, except for a court, counsel for the
respondents , counsel's consultants , agents of the Commission or other
law enforcement authorities , or others as ordered by a court of
competent jurisdiction , copies of "David. exe" or "david7.exe" or any
substantial1y similar software.
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VII.

It is further ordered That for a period of three years after the date
of entry ofthis order, each respondent shall in connection with any
business using the Internet to place international long distance
telephone calls:

A. Provide a copy of this order once to , and obtain a signed and
dated acknowledgment of receipt of the same from , each affliate
subsidiary, division, sales entity, successor, offcer, director
shareholder, employee , agent or representative of such respondcnt;
and

B. Maintain, and upon reasonable notice make available to
representatives of the Commission, the original and dated
acknowledgments of the receipts of copies of this order requircd by
Section VilA above,

VII
II is further ordered That where required by this order, written

notice to:

A. The Commission shall be effected by serving papers, by
personal delivery or certified mail , addressed to: Associate Director
Federal Trade Commission , Division of Marketing Practices , Sixth
Street and Pennsylvania Avenue, N. , Room 238 , Washington , DC;
and

B. The respondents shall be effected by serving papers, by
personal delivery or certified mail , addressed to: Joel R. Dichter
Klein, Zelman, Rothermel & Dichter, L.L.P. , 485 Madison Avenue
New York, NY.

IX.

It is further ordered That each respondent shall , within 180 days
after the date of entry to this order, file with the Commission a report
in writing, setting forth the maner and form of compliance with this
order.

It is further ordered That , to the extent that this order may
conflict with any federal law or regulation which is later enacted or
amended , such law and not this order shall apply where such a
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conflict exists. For the purposes of this order, a conflict exists if the
conduct prohibited by this order is required by such federal law or if
conduct required by this order is prohibited by such federal law.

Commissioner Thompson and Commissioner Swindle not
participating.

ATTACHMENT A

List of Moldova Phone Numbers

373-955- 1100
373-955- 1111
373-955- 1200
373-955- 1300
373-955- 1400
373-955- 1500
373-955- 1600
373-955-2000
373-955-2010
373-955-2020
373-955-2030
373-955-2222
373-955-2400

373-955-2401
373-955-2402
373-955-2403
373-955-2404
373-955-2405
373-955-2406
373-955-2407
373-955-2408
373-955-2409
373-955-2410
373-955-2411
373-955-2419
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IN THE MA TTER OF

INSILCO CORPORATION

CONSENT ORDER, ETe. , IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SEC. 7 OF THE CLAYTON ACT AND SEe. 5 OF THE

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3783. Complaint, Jan. 1998--Decision , Jan. 1998

This consent order requires , among other things , the Ohio-based company to divest
two of the Helima alumnum tube mills and associated assets to a Commssion-
approved buyer and prohibits the respondent from obtaining or providing the

tye of sensitive informtion -- such as price and cost infonntion, pricing
plans , strategies or policies relating to competition -- to others that it obtained
before consumating the acquisition of Helima.

Appearances

For the Commission: Casey Triggs, Nicholas Koberstein
Katherine Funk, Ann Malester and Wiliam Baer.

For the respondent: Linda R. Blumkin, Fried, Frank, Harris
Shriver Jacobson New York , N.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission ("Commission ), having reason
to believe that respondent Insilco Corporation ("Insilco ), a

corporation subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal Trade
Commission , has acquired certain assets of Helmut Lingemann
GmbH

, ("

Lingemann ) in violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act
as amended, 15 U.S.C. 18 , and Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act ("FTC Act"), 15 D. C. 45; and it appearing to the
Commission that a proceeding in respect thereof would be in the
public interest , hereby issues its complaint, stating its charges as
follows:

L DEFIC'ITIONS

For purposes of this complaint the following definitions apply:

1. " Welded Aluminum Tubes , including welded aluminum tubes
with diameters of 50 millimeters or greater ("Large Welded
Aluminum Tubes ) and welded aluminum tubes with diameters less
than 50 millimeters ("Small Welded Aluminum Tubes ), means thin
wall welded-seam aluminum tubes used in the manufacture of heat
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exchangers , which are devices that transfer heat from one fluid or gas
to another medium , generally air

2. "Non-Aggregated, Customer-Specifc Information means
information about a product' s cost and/or price that is in such a form
that the cost and/or price of a product for an identifiable individual
customer can be identified.

II. THE RESPONDENT

3. Respondent Insilco is a corporation organized, existing, and
doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Delaware , with its principal place of business at 425 Metro Place N
Box 7196 , Dublin , Ohio.

4. Insilco is, and at all times relevant herein has been , engaged in
commerce as "commerce" is defined in Section 1 of the Clayton Act
as amended, 15 U.S.c. 12 , and is a corporation whose business is in
or affecting commerce as "commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the
FTC Act , as amended , 15 U. C. 44.

II THE ACQUIRED COMPANY

5. Helima-Helvetion, Inc. ("Helima ) was a corporation
organized, existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the
laws of the State of New York, with its principal place of business
having been located at Duncan , South Carolina.

6. Helima, at all times relevant herein , was engaged in commerce
as "commerce" is defined in Section I of the Clayton Act, as
amended , 15 U.S.c. 12 , and was a corporation whose business is in
or affecting commerce as "commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the
FTC Act, as amended , 15 U.S. c. 44.

IV. THE ACQU1SITONS

7. On or about July 10 , 1996 , Insilco purchased from Lingemann
for $12.8 million the assets of Helima ("Helima Acquisition ); for
$17 million , the stock of Lingemann s European manufacturer of
welded aluminum heat exchanger tubes , ARUP AJu-Rohr und Profi
GmbH; and the option to purchase Maschinenbau, GmbH, a

Lingemann subsidiary in Germany that manufactures mills used in
the production of aluminum tubes (together, the "Acquisitions

8. Prior to the consummation of the Acquisitions , Insilco

requested and received from Lingemann Non-Aggregated, Customer-
Specific Information all of which is the type of information that
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would likely have been detrimental to competition in the relevant
markets if the Acquisition had not been consummated.

9. The Non-Aggregated, Customer-Specific Information
transferred ITom Helima to Insilco included descriptions of prior
customer negotiations; detailed customer-by-customer price quotes;
current pricing policies and strategies; and detailed, customer-by-
customer future pricing strategies.

V. THE RELEVANT MARKTS

10. For purposes ofthis complaint, a relevant line of commerce
in which to analyze the Helima Acquisition is the market for Large
Welded Aluminum Tubes.

II. For purposes ofthis complaint, a relevant line of commerce
in which to analyze the Helima Acquisition is the market for Smal1

Welded Aluminum Tubes.
12. For purposes of this complaint, the relevant geographic

market for both relevant lines of commerce is North America.
13. Each of the relevant markets is highly concentrated. As a

result of the Helima Acquisition, Insilco is currently the only supplier
of Large Welded Aluminum Tubes with 100% of the market , and one
of only two suppliers of Smal1 Welded Aluminum Tubes , with a
market share of over 90%.

14. There has been no entry into the market for Large Welded
Aluminum Tubes since the time ofthe Acquisitions , and the threat of
entry has not deterred anticompetitive effects resulting ITom the

Helima Acquisition. Because the cost of entering and producing
Large Welded Aluminum Tubes is relatively high compared to the
limited potential sales revenues available to an entrant , entry into this
market is not likely to be profitable. Consequently, entry into the
Large Welded Aluminum Tube market is not likely to occur in a
timely manner and counteract the additional anticompetitive effects
likely to result ITom the Helima Acquisition. Entry into this relevant
market is diffcult and unlikely.

IS. There has been no entry into the market for Smal1 Welded
Aluminum Tubes since the time of the Acquisitions , and the threat of
entry has not deterred anticompetitive effects resulting from the
Helima Acquisition. Additional anti competitive effects resulting ITom
the Helima Acquisition are likely and wil1 continue until such time as
actual and suffcient entry occurs.
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16. Prior to the Acquisitions , Insilco and Helima were actual
competitors in the relevant markets.

VI. EFFECTS OF THE ACQUISITON

17. The Acquisitions have substantially lessened
substantially lessen competition in the following ways:

or may

a. They have eliminated Helima as a substantial independent
competitor in the relevant markets;

b. They have eliminated actual, direct, and substantial
competition between Insilco and Helima in the relevant
markets;

c. They have increased the level of concentration in the already
highly concentrated relevant markets;

d. They have led, or may lead, to increases in prices in the

relevant markets;
e. They have led, or may lead , to a reduction in service in the

relevant markets;
f. They have led, or may lead, to the reduction in quality in the

relevant markets;
g. They have led , or may lead , to a reduction in technological

improvements in the relevant markets;
h. They have increased barriers to entry into the relevant

markets; and
1. They have given Insilco market power in the relevant markets.

VII. EFFECTS OF INFORMATION TRANSFER

18. Insilco received from Lingemann competitively sensitive
information prior to the consummation of the Acquisitions , that , but
for the consummation of the Acquisitions , may have detrimentally
affected competition in the relevant markets.

VII VIOLATIONS CHARGED

19. The effects of the Acquisitions may be substantially to lessen
competition or tend to create a monopoly in violation of Section 7 of
the Clayton Act , 15 U. C. 18 , and Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15
U.S. c. 45.

20. Insilco, through the Acquisitions , has engaged in unfair
methods of competition in or affecting commerce in violation of
Section 5 of the FTC Act , 15 U. c. 45.
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21. Prior to the Aequisitions, Insilco requested and received ITom
Lingemann Non-Aggregated , Customer-Specific Infonnation about
customers for which they both competed in the relevant product
markets in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act , 15 U. C. 45.

Commissioner Swindle not participating.

DECISION AN ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation
of the acquisition ofthe assets ofHelima-Helvetion International , Inc.

Helima ), and of all the capital stock of ARUP Alu-Rohr und Profi
GmbH ("ARUP") ITom Helmut Lingemann GmbH & Co. by
respondent , and the respondent having been furnished thereafter with
a copy of a draft of complaint that the Bureau of Competition
presented to the Commission for its consideration and which, if

issued by the Commission, would charge respondent with violations
of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as amended , 15 US. c. 18 , and
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act , as amended, 15

c. 45; and

Respondent, its attorneys , and counsel for the Commission having
thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order, an
admission by respondent of all the jurisdictional faets set forth in the
aforesaid draft of complaint, a statement that the signing of said
agreement is for settlement puroses only and does not constitute an
admission by respondent that the law has been violated as alleged in
such complaint , or that the facts as alleged in such complaint, other
than jurisdictional facts , are true and waivers and other provisions as
required by the Commission s Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having determined that it had reason to believe that the respondent
has violated the said Acts , and that a eomplaint should issue stating
its charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the

executed consent agreement and plaeed such agreement on the public
record for a period of sixty (60) days , and having duly considered the
comment received , now in further confonnity with the procedure
described in Section 2.34 of its Rules , the Commission hereby issues
its complaint, makes the following jurisdictional findings and enters
the following order:
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1. Respondent Insilco is a corporation organized , existing, and
doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the state of
Delaware , with its offce and principaJ place of business Jocated at
425 Metro PJace N. , Dublin, Ohio.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondent , and the proceeding
is in the pubJic interest.

ORDER

It is ordered That, as used in this order, the foJJowing definitions
shaJJ apply:

A. Respondent means 1nsiJco Corporation ("InsiJco ), its

directors, offcers, empJoyees, agents, and representatives
predecessors, successors, and assigns; its subsidiaries , divisions
groups, and affliates controJJed by Insilco; and the respective
directors , offcers, empJoyees , agents , representatives , successors , and
assigns of each.

B. Lingemann means HeJmut Lingemann GmbH & Co. , its
directors, offcers, employees, agents, and rcpresentatives
predecessors, successors, and assigns; its subsidiares, divisions
groups , and affJiates controJJed by Lingemann; and the respective
directors , offcers , employees , agents , representatives , successors , and

assigns of each.

C. Maschinenbau means Helmut Lingemann Maschinenbau

GmbH , its directors, offcers , empJoyees , agents , and representatives
predecessors, successors , and assigns; its subsidiaries , divisions
groups , and affiliates controJJed by Maschinenbau; and the respective
directors , offcers , employees , agents, representatives, successors, and

assigns of each.

D. Commission means the FederaJ Trade Commission.
E. Helima Acquisition means the acquisition of the assets of

HeJima-HeJvetion International , Inc. and of an the capitaJ stock of
ARUP Alu-Rohr und Profi GmbH from Lingemann by InsiJco.

F. Thin- Wall Welded-Seam Aluminum Tubes means welded-
seam aluminum heat exchanger tubes with waJJ thickness Jess than

65 miJJimeters used in the manufacture of heat exchangers , which
are devices that transfer heat from one fluid or gas to another
medium , generaJJy air. These heat exchangers generaJJy are us cd in
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automotive applications. Thin-Wall Welded-Seam Aluminum Tubes
does not include tubes used as spacers between thennal pane
windows , condenser headers , or manifolds.

G. Welded Tube Mill means a high fTequency welding machine
capable of producing Thin-Wall Welded-Seam Aluminum Tubes.

H. Lingemann Mil" means a Welded Tube Mill manufactured
by Lingemann and operated by Helima-Helvetion International , Inc.
or ARUP Alu-Rohr und Profil GmbH prior to the Helima
Acquisition.

I. Marketabilty, viability, and competitiveness means that the
specified assets , when used in conjunction with the assets of the
acquirer, are capable of operating in substantially the same manner
quality, and effciency employed or achieved by the respondent prior
to divestiture.

J. Non-Aggregated, Customer-Specifc Information means
information about a product' s cost and/or price that is in such a fonn
that the cost and/or price of a product for an identifiable individual
customer can be identified.

K. Strategies or policies related to competition means
infonnation relating to a company s approach to negotiating with
specific customers , targeting specific customers , identifying or in any
other manner attempting to win specific customers , retaining specific
customers , or risk of loss of specific customers , including, but not
limited to , all sales personnel ca1l reports , market studies , forecasts
and surveys which contain such infonnation.

L. Analyses or formulas used to determine costs or prices
means a method, study, test , program, examination , tool , or other type
of logical reasoning used to detennine a product' s cost and/or price
for an identifiable individual customer.

M. Person means any natural person, corporate entity,
partnership, association , joint venture , or trust.

N. Independenl agenl means a person not regularly employed
by the company that does not have and will not have direct or indirect
responsibility for prices or pricing or the abiliIy to influence prices or
pricing or an attorney regularly employed by the company that does
not have and wi1 not have direct or indirect responsibility for prices
or pricing or the ability to influence prices or pricing.
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O. Assets To Be Divested" include the following:

(a) One (1) fully functioning and operational Lingemann Mill
consisting of a high frequency welder, a rollfonning base, a cutoff
saw , a finished product drop table , a stock reel decoder, a vacuum
coil lifter, and control cabinets, capable of producing Thin-Wall
Welded-Seam Aluminum Tubes with a diameter of less than forty
(40) millimeters;

(b) One (1) fully functioning and operational Lingemann Mill
consisting of a high frequency welder, a rollfonning base, a cutoff
saw, a finished product drop table , a stock reel decoder, a vacuum
coil lifter, and control cabinets, capable of producing Thin-Wall
Welded-Seam Aluminum Tubes with a diameter of greater than
seventy- five (75) millimeters; and

(c) One (1) set of tooling capable of operating on both mills.

P. Technology and know-how means all of respondent'

drawings , patents , specifications , tests , and other documentation , and
all infonnation contained therein or available to respondent'

personnel relating to the design, and the production methods
processes , and systems used in the production of Thin- Wall Welded-
Seam Aluminum Tubes utilizing Lingemann Mills or the operation
and maintenance of Lingemann Mills for use in the production of
Thin-Wall Welded-Seam Aluminum Tubes. Technology and know-
how does not include the drawings , patents, specifications , tests , and
other documentation, and all infonnation not acquired by respondent
in the Helima Acquisition and not developed by respondent following
the Helima Acquisition specifically relating to the design, and the
production methods , processes , and systems used in the production
of Thin-Wall Welded-Seam Aluminum Tubes utilizing Lingemann
Mills or the operation and maintenance of Lingemann Mills for use
in the production of Thin-Wall Welded-Seam Aluminum Tubes.

Q. Sale Source Replacement Parts means all parts needed to
operate and maintain the Assets To Be Divested that are not readily
available from a source other than respondent.

R. fIelima Assets means all Welded Tube Mills , including
machinery, fixtures, equipment, and tooling used in the maintenance
or operation of such mills , acquired by Insi1co in its acquisition ofthe
assets of Helima-Helvetion International , Inc. , from Lingemann.
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II.

It is further ordered That:

A. Respondent shall divest, absolutely and in good faith, no later
than four (4) months after the date on which this order becomes final
the Assets To Be Divested.

B. The divestiture shall be made to an acquirer that receives the
prior approval of the Commission and only in a maner that receives
the prior approval of the Commission. The purpose ofthe divestiture
is to ensure the continued use of the Assets To Be Divested in the
same business in which the Assets To Be Divested are presently
engaged , and to remedy the lessening of competition resulting from
the Helima Acquisition as alleged in the Commission s complaint.

C. Respondent shall also divest to the aequirer such additional
anei1ar assets that arc not readily available from a source other than
respondent, including, but not limited to , machinery, fixtures
equipment , and software , used in the maintenance or operation of the
Assets To Be Divested as are necessary to assure the marketability,
viability, and competitiveness of the Assets To Be Divested.

D. Respondent shall grant to the acquirer a perpetual, non-
exclusive royalty-free license of any and all technology and know-
how necessary to assure the marketability, viability, and
competitiveness of the Assets To Be Divested. Such license shall be
effective only in connection with the operation of the Assets To Be
Divested by the acquirer, any successor to the acquirer, or any
subsequent owner ofthe Lingemann Mills included in the Assets To
Be Divested. The acquirer shall also have the right to sublicense the
technology and know-how encompassed within its license for use on
other assets or equipment physically located in North America.

E. A condition of approval by the Commission of the divestiture
shall be the submission by the acquirer to the Commission of an
acceptable five-year business plan for the Assets To Be Divested
demonstrating that the acquirer will establish the Assets To Be
Divested as a viable and competitive business in North America.

F. On reasonable notice to respondent from the acquirer of the
Assets To Be Divested , respondent shall provide assistance and
training to the acquirer to enable the acquirer to design, manufacture
and produce Thin-Wall Welded-Seam Aluminum Tubes at a
comparable cost in substantially the same manner and quality
employed or achieved by the respondent with the Assets To Be
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Divested prior to divestiture. Such assistance and training shall
include , without limitation, consultation with employees of lnsilco
knowledgeable about Lingemann Mills and training at the North
American manufacturing facilities of lnsilco utilizing Lingeman
Mills. If training at the North American manufacturing facilities of
lnsilco utilizing Lingemann MilJs is not possible , respondent shall
provide training at any manufacturing facility of lnsilco utilizing
Lingemann Mills. Respondent shall charge no more than its own
direct costs incurred in providing such assistance and training,
including reimbursement (commensurate with the salar and benefits
of lnsilco personnel involved) for the time plus expenses of lnsilco
personnel providing assistance and training. Respondent shall
continue to provide such assistance and training until the acquirer of
the Assets To Be Divested is satisfied in its reasonable business
judgement that it is capable of producing Thin-Wall Welded-Seam
Aluminum Tubes utilizing the Assets To Be Divested at a comparable
cost in substantially the same manner and quality achieved by
respondent prior to divestiture with the Assets To Be Divested;
provided , however, respondent shall not be required to continue
providing such technical assistance and training for more than one (1)
year after the date on which the divestiture required by this order is
made ifthe acquirer of the Assets To Be Divested is a manufacturer
of Thin-Wall Welded-Seam Aluminum Tubes with sales of Thin-
Wall Welded-Seam Aluminum Tubes greater than one million dollars
($1 000 000) in the fiscal year prior to the date of divestiture. If the
acquirer of the Assets To Be Divested is not a manufacturer of Thin-
Wall Welded-Seam Aluminum Tubes with sales of Thin-Wall
Welded-Seam Aluminum Tubes greater than one million dollars
($1 000 000) in the fiscal year prior to the date of divestiture

respondent shall be required to provide such technical assistance and
training for a period not longer than three (3) years after the date on
which the divestiture required by this order is made.

G. On reasonable notice to respondent from the acquirer of the
Assets To Be Divested, respondent shall provide Sole Source

Replacement Pars to the acquirer. Rcspondent shall charge no more
than its own direct costs incurred in providing such Sole Source
Replacement Pars. Respondent shall not be required to continue
providing such Sole Source Replacement Pars for more than two (2)
years after the date on which the divestiture required by this order is
made.
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H. The Assets To Be Divested shall be supplied as completely
wired and piped systems , requiring only the placement and bolting
together of the sub-bases , the reconnection of the electrical wires at
numbered tenninal block junctions, and the connection of the piping
to the union joints.

1. Qualification, perfonnance, and the acquirer s acceptance of the
Assets To Be Divested shall be perfonned at the facility of the
acquirer in a manner to ensure that the Assets To Be Divested are
capable of producing Thin- W a1l Welded-Seam Aluminum Tubes in
substantia1ly the same manner and quality employed or achieved by
the respondent with the Assets To Be Divested prior to divestiture.

J. On reasonable notice to respondent by a customer, respondent
sha1l provide the approved acquirer tooling owned by, assigned to , or
licensed to the respondent, which was produced prior to the date this
order becomes final and not included in the Assets To Be Divested
and which was manufactured specifica1ly for and used solely for that
customer s products. Respondent may charge the reasonable costs
incurred in the manufacture of the tooling.

K. Pending divestiture ofthe Assets To Be Divested , respondent
sha1l take such actions as are reasonably necessary to maintain the
marketability, viability, and competitiveness of the Assets To Be
Divested and to prevent the destruction, removal, wasting,
deterioration, or impainnent of the Assets To Be Divested.

L. Pending divestiture of the Assets To Be Divested , respondent
sha1l take such actions as are reasonably necessary to maintain the
marketability, viability, and competitiveness ofthe Helima Assets to
prevent the destruction, removal, wasting, deterioration, or
impainnent of the Helima Assets.

It is further ordered That:

A. If respondent has not divested , absolutely and in good faith and
with the Commission s prior approval , the Assets To Be Divested
within four (4) months of the date this order becomes final , then the
Commission may appoint a trustee to divest the Helima Assets and
effect such additional arrangements as are necessary, in order to
assure the marketability, viability, and competitiveness ofthe Helima
Assets. In the event the Commission or the Attorney General brings
an action pursuant to Section 5(1) ofthc Federal Trade Commission
Act, 15 D. C. 45(1), or any other statute enforced by the




